
September 20, 2010 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 
 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. On roll call, Bain, McConnell, Bertuleit, Patrick, 
Brusselback, and Obteshka were present. Kilbride was excused 
 Staff present was City Manager Voetberg, City Recorder Hawker, City Attorney 
McCarthy, Community Development Director Tokos, Library Director Smith, Finance 
Director Marshall, Public Works Director Ritzman, Airport Director Cossey, and Police 
Chief Miranda. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
 A. Minutes of September 7, 2010 City Council work session, executive session, and 
regular meeting; 
 B. Fire and Police Department monthly reports for August 2010; 
 C. Report of accounts paid for August 2010. 
 McConnell asked about the award of funds for RSVP grant. Is it called an event start-
up. Voetberg – start-up is budget line item. 
 MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by Brusselback, to approve the 
consent calendar as presented. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
 
 Obteshka reported on a recent meeting of the Library Board. He noted that the 
election of officers was deferred to November. He added that the Library Board would 
like to establish five year terms for its members.  
 Obteshka reported that Voetberg would report on after-hour use of the Senior Center 
later this evening. 
 Obteshka reported that the recent Wild Seafood Weekend was very successful and 
educational. 
 Obteshka noted that the rain garden at City Hall was mentioned in the News-Times, 
and is a part of the sustainability effort. 
 Brusselback will talk about the pool bond measure later this evening. 
 McConnell reported that he had a great trip; saw lots of other towns; and got some 
great ideas for the future. 
 Patrick reported that the URA open house at OCCC was successful, and it appears 
that all concerns have been addressed. 
 Patrick reported that Dr. Boehlert invited folks to the HMSC to meet with a group of 
OSU doctors on how they are perceived in the community, and how they can help the 
city. She noted that the session was well attended and there was good feedback.
 Patrick reported that a joint meeting with the Airline Sustainability Task Force, City 



Council, and Destination Newport Committee was held, and that there were good 
comments regarding marketing of the air service. 
 Patrick reported on a recent meeting of the City Center Newport Association. Issues 
discussed include the formation of a parking district, and the revitalization of the area. 
She noted that a fee reduction was mentioned as a possible idea to stimulate growth in 
the area. 

Patrick reported that she had attended the airport barbecue on Saturday, and that a 
number of people flew in for various amounts of time and activities. 
 Patrick reported that the Jellyfish Jubilee is this Saturday, and it is important and 
warrants support. 
 Bertuleit reported that he recently flew SeaPort, on both the Caravan and Pilatus. He 
noted that it is a good service. 

Bertuleit reported that he had watched a Newport Beach, California City Council 
meeting while he was out of town. 
 Bertuleit reported that there was a good turnout for the recent half-marathon. He 
added that a number of participants came from out of the area. 
 Bain reported that he attended a recent meeting of the Air Service Consortium which 
was followed by a joint meeting of the City Council, Airline Service Sustainability Task 
Force, and the Destination Newport Committee. He noted that a local marketing 
program was discussed at the joint meeting. He added that it was the consensus of the 
group that the City of Newport and the Port of Astoria be authorized to use $40,000, 
each, from ConnectOregon II grant funds for a fly local campaign in each community. He 
added that the campaign would not be geared toward a specific airline. 

Voetberg distributed a staff report on this subject. 
 Cossey discussed the joint meeting that occurred last Friday. He noted that 
McCarthy had received approval from ODOT to use ConnectOregon II grant monies for 
a local air service marketing campaign. He added that Newport would use these funds 
to put together a localized, grass-roots “Fly Newport” campaign. He stated that the 
campaign should result in putting more people in the airline seats and extending the life 
of the grant and subsidy. Patrick reported that one of the concerns of the ASTF was the 
amount of money spent marketing in the catchment area. She noted that this is an issue 
because the local marketing group should not be duplicating SeaPort’s marketing in the 
area. Cossey stated that he will make sure the group does not duplicate any of 
SeaPort’s efforts, and that money is spent as efficiently as possible to stretch it out as 
long as possible. Cossey noted that he will coordinate the marketing effort, and that a lot 
of folks have volunteered to help. Cossey reported that he will develop a strategy for 
ConnectOregon II and provide it to the City Council. McConnell noted that one issue is 
the connection with travelers within the catchment basin, and reaching the travelers who 
are flying but not using SeaPort. Bertuleit stated that he did not see any survey cards 
when he flew SeaPort. McConnell noted that SeaPort’s most recent survey card data 
has not been updated for some time. 
 MOTION was made by Patrick, seconded by McConnell, to approve the use of 
$80,000 of ConnectOregon II grant funds for a “Fly Newport” and a “Fly Astoria” 
advertising campaign, to be split equally between Newport and Astoria, and direct staff 
to implement a “Fly Newport” advertising campaign. Cossey will organize the campaign 
as an airport administration function. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 



OFFICER’S REPORTS 
 
 City Manager’s Report. Voetberg reported that the 2011 LOC legislative list is 
included in the packet along with Council’s top four priorities.  
 Voetberg reported that the COG newsletter is also in the packet. 

Voetberg reported that information on the annual Oregon Main Street Conference is 
in the packet. 

Voetberg reported that information regarding parking at Elizabeth and Olive Streets 
is included in the packet and will be discussed after input is received from John Clark. 

Voetberg reported that the packet contained the financial report for the month ending 
August 31, 2010. He added that revenues will be included in the next monthly report. He 
noted that the city is doing pretty well on expenses. 

Obteshka asked whether there is a schedule for cleaning all storm drains. Voetberg 
noted that they may not all be cleaned, but all the storm drains in Nye Beach will be 
cleaned.  
 Brusselback asked about the budget to actual numbers for the airport, since it is 
approximately eight percent higher. Voetberg noted that this is indicative of greater fuel 
purchases due to higher fuel sales. 
 Voetberg reported that the Senior Center Advisory Board had discussed fees. He 
noted that currently, the center is not charging for after-hours use, and no one is staffing 
after-hour uses at this time. He will meet with Robert Smith to discuss the matter. 
 Bain reported that the Council had interviewed five of eleven applicants for the 
Technical Task Force for the ocean monitoring program. The other applicants will be 
interviewed at the next work session. The Task Force will be charged with establishing 
criteria and a process for issuing an RFP or contract for monitoring. 
 Bain reported that there are two vacancies on the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Committee. He requested a press release be issued. 
 Bertuleit requested an increase of two members to the Bicycle/Pedestrian 
Committee to facilitate the ability to achieve a quorum. 
 
 City Attorney’s Report. McCarthy reported that a revision to the local contracting 
rules would be presented to Council soon. 

McCarthy distributed a quick reference on restrictions on political campaigning for 
public employees. She cautioned against staff engagement when discussing the pool 
bond measure. 
 McCarthy reported that URA Resolution 2010-4 must be amended by noon 
tomorrow. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
 Presentation by Library Director, Ted Smith. Smith presented a synopsis of the past 
year at the Library. He distributed a handout containing statistics, and reviewed the 
many services and programs provided by the Library. 
 

Presentation by Mead/Hunt on airport sustainability. Mike Boggs and Alex Vrtiska, 
from Mead and Hunt presented an overview of the recent passenger demand analysis 
overview. They concluded that the catchment area can support airline service under 



certain conditions. Patrick asked that a copy of the presentation be e-mailed to the 
Airline Sustainability Task Force.  

 
Discussion on room tax and business license ordinance amendments. Patrick 

reported that she has a potential and possible actual conflict of interest in this matter. 
She suggested that Council consider creating a task force to examine this issue. 
Obteshka reported that the lodging association has concerns with this issue. McCarthy 
noted that this information was prepared for discussion only, and is not in finished form. 
Bain disagreed with the formation of a task force, noting that knowledgeable people 
have had input in the matter. Bain asked for comments. 

McCarthy reported that it became apparent that both the room tax and business 
license codes needed to be updated. She noted that she discussed the issues with a 
group of property managers, and concluded that the discussions should occur as a part 
of a public meeting. She mentioned that staff reviewed and suggested revisions to the 
codes. She noted that the Planning Commission determined that they wanted to look at 
vacation rentals, and it is all tied together. She suggested a City Council work session to 
discuss the matter. 

Patrick asked whether the meetings with the working group fell under the 
requirements of the public meetings law. McCarthy noted that the concern was that staff 
was meeting with a specific group about codes that affect everyone without allowing 
others to weigh in. She added that it was never the intent to work with this group on an 
ongoing basis for months. Patrick reiterated that she thinks that a committee or task 
force should be formed with interested parties. McConnell noted that the scope has 
changed, and that it started with issues on room tax and has grown into a much larger 
issue. Bain noted that this is not a final cut, but it begins to identify problem areas. He 
suggested a special work session to deal with the matter. 

Lee Hardy stated that she thinks it is great to start with a City Council work session. 
She noted that the business license ordinance was not enforced until 2008. She added 
that it is more effective to break the ordinances into components. She noted that 
enforceability is a big issue, as is the registration of all vacation rentals. She stated that 
public education is as effective as code enforcement.  

Tracy Wiley, representing the Greater Newport Restaurant and Lodging Association, 
stated that this group’s primary concern is that the city is not recognizing the revenues it 
should be receiving. He noted that the business license code and room tax code are two 
different issues. 

A work session to discuss these issues will be scheduled for October 11, 2010, at 
4:00 P.M. 

 
Council took a seven minute break until 8:25 P.M. 
 
Discussion of upcoming pool bond measure. Brusselback reported that he is 

becoming increasingly anxious about the pool bond measure because election day is 
drawing near and it does not seem like a lot is happening. He noted that on March 15, 
2010, Council adopted Resolution No. 3496, giving direction on the replacement of the 
existing swimming pool. He noted that, at that time, Council became the official 
advocates of this idea. He asked for a dialogue and feedback on what Council thinks it 
can do to advocate, individually or collectively, for the pool. He reported that a political 



action committee (PAC) was established, and that Stephanie Simpson was here to 
report on its activities, but had to leave. He noted that he had spoken to her and she 
stated that she has yard signs ready to go. He noted that benefits of the measure 
passing include a modern pool that may last as long as the existing pool; a new dynamic 
to the recreation center; the city will receive more than four acres of South Beach 
property that will be valuable in the future; and construction costs are reasonable now. 
He added that if the measure fails, the city will have a declining pool without a 
replacement plan; no donated land in South Beach; and the measure may need to be 
placed on an upcoming ballot with potential election costs between $6,000 - $7,000. 
Bain asked how Council, as individuals or as a group, could be most helpful to the PAC. 
It was noted that the PAC needs talking points, and it would be helpful to have 
something to give to people regarding the measure. Brusselback noted that the 
community needs to be canvassed to get the word out as fast as possible.  

Dave Morgan reported that there is a website – www.yesnewportpool.com. He added 
that a flyer, signs, and video are being prepared. 

Brusselback reported that 150 signs are ready now. Patrick suggested presentations 
before Rotary, the Chamber of Commerce, and other civic organizations. McConnell 
suggested that it would be helpful to know when the PAC meets. Dave Morgan stated 
that the next meeting of the PAC will be September 29, 2010, at 4:00 P.M. It was 
suggested that a question and answer brochure be included in the water bills, and 
possibly on the city’s website. 

MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by Brusselback, to include an insert in 
the water bills, and on the city website, regarding the pool measure. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 

Obteshka suggested including a flyer in the chamber newsletter that could be funded 
by the PAC. It was noted that another public information opportunity is a public service 
announcement.  
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

Resolution No. 3525 amending the water schedule to incorporate a no shut-off for 
convenience policy. Voetberg explained that this issue was before Council at the last 
meeting, and that this resolution would not allow vacation shut-offs to avoid paying a 
water/sewer bill. He added that it takes staff time to turn the service off and on, and this 
will be a time saver for employees. He noted that the idea had come from the Public 
Works staff as a cost-saving measure for the city. He noted that the second reason is 
that the majority of the water/sewer costs are fixed, and that this change would more 
fairly distribute the system fixed costs to all customers. He stated that this resolution 
contains a voluntary SOS plan. Obteshka reviewed shut-off policies from other 
communities. MOTION was made by Obteshka, seconded by Brusselback, to adopt 
Resolution No. 3525, a resolution setting rates for water utility charges, fees, deposits, 
and penalties, and repealing Resolution Nos. 3516 and 3520 with the provision that 
minor typos be corrected. Brusselback asked whether unused buildings begin getting 
water bills. Voetberg reported that the Finance and Public Works Departments will talk 
with the owners to arrive at equitable charges. The motion carried in a voice vote with 
Bertuleit voting no. 

 

http://www.yesnewportpool.com/


Resolution No. 3526 appointment of an Advisory Committee for the Nye Beach 
Commercial Parking District. Tokos reported that the issue before Council is the 
consideration of a resolution appointing Kathy Cleary, Wendy Engler, Doug Fitts, Jody 
George, and Linda Neigebauer as the Advisory Committee for the Nye Beach 
Commercial Parking District, and repealing Resolution No. 3501 which appointed the 
Nye Beach Merchants Association in this capacity. McConnell asked about the process 
for the group to spend money. Tokos noted that the committee will identify project 
priorities and how money should be spent, but the city will be the implementing arm. 
Obteshka asked whether the city would enter into leases for parking spaces. McCarthy 
noted that when Ordinance No. 1993 was adopted, it was anticipated that the Nye 
Beach Merchants Association would be entering into leases, etc. Brusselback 
suggested that the Advisory Committee could talk with staff regarding these issues. 
Obteshka stated that he is looking at the city as a partner in this process. Linda 
Neigebauer reviewed the history of the parking district. She asked that the city 
reconsider its position on entering into agreements on improvements with private 
parties. McCarthy noted that an advisory committee is a different situation, and it is 
reasonable to expect that the city will enter into relationships with private parties. Tokos 
noted that this will require an amendment to the ordinance, and the ordinance can come 
to Council after the Advisory Committee is appointed. Obteshka asked whether 
additional members can be appointed if necessary. Bertuleit suggested the resolution 
include language regarding the number of committee members, rather than individual 
names. 

Eileen Obteshka asked for clarification of the process. She noted that she believed 
the city would be a partner with the parking district, and now she feels like the city wants 
to change the options for Nye Beach. A discussion ensued regarding available funding. 
McConnell asked how money is budgeted to address problems. Tokos reported that 
there are budgeted monies that parking districts could use, and there is approximately 
$50,000 set aside for parking districts to use during this budget year, but that it is 
incumbent to get specific projects that would leverage those funds for. 

David Allen, attorney representing the Nye Beach Merchants Association, thanked 
Council for considering removal of the private exemption.  McCarthy stated that when 
she and Tokos developed Ordinance No. 1993, they contemplated the Nye Beach 
Merchants Association as the Advisory Committee. She noted that No. 7 in the findings 
indicates that applications had been received from five people, which is a reasonable 
number to serve on the Advisory Committee. She added that if a vacancy occurs, the 
vacancy would be filled according to the city’s committee policy. MOTION was made by 
McConnell, seconded by Brusselback, to adopt Resolution No. 3526, as with the 
amendment to Section 7, appointing Kathy Cleary, Wendy Engler, Doug Fitts, Jody 
George, and Linda Neigebauer as the Advisory Committee for the Nye Beach 
Commercial Parking District, and repealing Resolution No. 3501. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. MOTION was made by McConnell, seconded by 
Brusselback, to direct staff to come to Council in the near future with a revision to 
Ordinance No. 1993 adding an advisory committee that is part of the city government, 
rather than an association operating the parking district. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 

 



Consideration of spending room tax marketing funds for outdoor billboard 
advertising. Voetberg distributed a revised agenda statement and motion, and reported 
that the issue before Council is consideration of spending $15,000 from room tax 
marketing funds for design and placement of outdoor billboard advertising along 
Highway 18 near Grand Ronde. He added that the DNC recommended that Council 
fund up to $15,000 for advertising in the manner at this location. MOTION was made by 
Patrick, seconded by McConnell, to authorize the expenditure of $15,000 of room tax 
advertising and marketing funds for the design and placement of outdoor advertising 
with Meadow Outdoor Advertising near Grand Ronde. The motion carried unanimously 
in a voice vote. McConnell noted that the DNC is working really hard at being as cost 
effective as possible and is doing a great job. 

 
Request for Council approval to apply for a Lincoln County Economic Development 

Fund grant for recreational improvements in the Agate Beach area. Tokos reported that 
the issue before Council is consideration of support for the Community Development 
Department to prepare an application for a Lincoln County Economic Development Fund 
grant in the amount of $10,000 to help offset costs to plan for and design a recreational 
trail connecting the ODOT parking lot south of the Highway 101 intersection at NW 
Agate Way with beach access points to the west. He noted that this is a partnership 
between city and county. The design will include a bathroom and outdoor shower 
facility, and the planning work will establish a secondary means of vehicle access into 
and out of the neighborhood along NW Gilbert Way or NW Circle Way. The city will 
contribute $10,000 of matching funds should the grant be awarded. Bain and McConnell 
reported that they have property in the area. Tokos noted that a discussion regarding 
how to pay for the improvements will need to occur during the upcoming budget cycle. 
MOTION was made by Patrick, seconded by McConnell, that staff be directed to 
prepare the grant application and authorize the Mayor to sign the document. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
 Bertuleit asked staff to investigate what ODOT is considering regarding parking on 
Highway 101 in the Deco District. He stated that it degrades the city center. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:47 P.M. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker, City Recorder    William D. Bain, Mayor 
 

 
 


